
          
 

Board Members Present:    Also Present: 
Bruce Duarte, Chair     Debra Lee, COA Director 
Patricia Costa, Vice Chair    Cynthia Wallquist, Director of Community Services 
Inez Mello 
Stanley Ociesa      Excused: 
Mary Sullivan      Virginia Morrison, Secretary   
Esperanza Alejandro-Berube    James Sylvia 
Joan Swain                              
Jane Stott        
        
       
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 AM by the Chairman, Bruce Duarte 
 
Secretary’s Report 

Mr. Duarte asked the board members to read over the minutes to see if there were any questions.  Mr. Duarte 
asked Ms. Lee how did the Department of Community Services and Council on Aging deal with the excess of 
snow removal needs.  Ms. Lee stated she found several gentlemen who are willing to assist the extra seniors to 
meet the high demand need.  The board members agreed upon the approval of the minutes from February 13, 
2014 meeting.   
 
A motion to approve the minutes for February 13, 2014 meeting was made by Ms. Swain, and seconded 
by Ms. Sullivan.  The motion was unanimously approved. 
 
Old Business 
 
Mr. Duarte asked how the free transportation to the senior centers was working out.  Ms. Lee stated there is now 
an application that has to be filled out for an approval to be able to receive the transportation.  Seniors who use 
the free transportation are asked to stay at the senior center for at least a three hour period.  It has helped with 
time management thus aiding to more seniors being able to use the service.  Ms. Lee stated she is in the process 
of hiring a new driving for either the morning or afternoon free transportation route.  Mr. Duarte asked Ms. Lee 
how the funding of the new driver position is being paid. Ms. Lee stated there is money left in the Coastline 
Title III grant which helps aid this endeavor. Also, Ms. Lee informed the board members about Roland 
Blanchard’s retirement and how the vacant position has not been filled which aides with the funding of the new 
driver.   Mr. Duarte said he and the other members of the board would like to receive a copy of the approved 
budget.  Ms. Lee said Ms. Aguiar is going to attend the April 10th advisory board meeting per the board’s 
request from the February 13th advisory meeting.   
 
 
New Business 
 
Mr. Duarte asked about the progress of the new electronic tracking system.  Ms. Lee informed the board 

 

 

Council on Aging 
March 13, 2014 – 9:00 AM - Minutes 

181 Hillman Street, Building 9 
 

**View Agenda** 
 
 

 



members about the revolving senior transportation fund from the payment received from seniors for medical, 
personal and shopping transportation.  Ms. Lee explained that there is a little over $13,000 allocated in the 
senior transportation fund and the cost for the electronic tracking system is $9,970 which would leave a little 
more than $3,000 in the transportation fund.  Ms. Lee explained about how the electronic system was not listed 
in the approved FY14 budget, so it has to be presented to the City Council for approval.  Ms. Lee has made the 
request for the April 10th, 2014 City Council meeting for this item to be on the agenda.  Ms. Lee said she and 
Ms. Amaral-Lema have seen how the new system works at tallying information regarding duplicated and 
unduplicated services, and how on average has saved time for COA administrative staff to apply yearly for four 
additional grants.  The “My Senior Center” package would include two touch screen bases for the Buttonwood 
and Hazelwood senior center and software data license for the five senior centers.  The “My Senior Center” 
electronic tracking system is used at 170 senior centers across the state of Massachusetts.  Ms. Lee stated she 
has received positive feedback regarding the system from different Council on Aging directors/staff from the 
country through the Crossroads senior center website.   
 
Programming at the Hillman Street Senior Support Center has taken off well.  The three weekly computer 
classes have filled up in less than three weeks.  Seniors are excited about the new prospects that the support 
center brings to the community.  There are two computer classes held on Mondays from 9:30AM to 10:30AM 
and 10:30AM to 11:30AM, and one on Thursday from 1:00PM to 2:00PM.  Mr. Duarte stated about how great 
it is that the Hillman St. Support Center is offering activities to help keep seniors’ minds active which can help 
prevent Alzheimer’s disease and dementia in seniors.   
 
 Mr. Duarte asked about the Cranston Senior Center day trip that Ms. Lee, Ms. Amaral-Lema and Mr. Lobo 
took on February 28, 2014.  Ms. Lee and Ms. Amaral-Lema stated it was an honor to meet Mayor Fung.  Ms. 
Lee and Ms. Amaral-Lema and Mr. Lobo took a tour of the city and had lunch at their senior center.  The RSVP 
volunteers were touched by the reception they received when they visited New Bedford on December 11th, 
2013, and wanted to reciprocate the feeling.   
 
 
Chairman’s Report- Mr. Duarte 
 
Mr. Duarte stated he is very pleased with the progress of the Hillman Street Support Center.  He also 
commented about the murals and how the hallway mural adds an interactive image of the city and it livens up 
the space well.  
 
Mr. Duarte said he had concerns about the participation at the Downtown Senior Center.  Mr. Duarte asked Ms. 
Lee for Ms. Duarte, Downtown Senior Activities Coordinator, to be in attendance for the April 10th, 2014 
meeting to discuss concerns regarding the center.  Mr. Duarte understands the seniors’ concerns about parking, 
space, and other issues and is hoping to address them with Ms. Duarte.  Ms. Lee stated since the lease is ending 
in July she has been looking at different locations to house the Downtown Senior Center.  Unfortunately, there 
is limited availability of space in the Downtown area with ample parking.   
 
 
Motion to approve the Chairman’s report was made by Ms. Costa and seconded by Ms. Swain.  It was 
unanimously approved.   
 
 
Director’s Report- Ms. Lee 
 
Ms. Lee informed the board regarding the approval of a grant to fund support group training for resettlement 
and bereavement.  This grant is from the Executive Office of Elder Affairs in the amount of $3,000.   
 
Ms. Lee stated she and Ms. Amaral-Lema have started the bereavement facilitating group training with the 



YWCA.  This group focuses of the loss of a life partner/wife/spouse.  It focuses on the transition one has to 
unfortunately make with losing their significant other.   
 
Ms. Lee said she has been giving $50 gift cards increment to seniors in need of groceries.  This is a onetime 
allotment of $50, but it has been able to help many seniors struggling at the end of the month. Mr. Duarte said 
he would be interested out passing out food to the needy if Ms. Lee knows anyone who runs a food pantry in 
need of assistance.   
 
Ms. Lee asked the board members about the possibility of the New Bedford Council on Aging fundraiser to be 
held in September if it should be a luncheon or a weekend early evening event.  The board members concluded 
they would like a Friday night 5PM-9PM dinner and dance event.   
 
Ms. Lee spoke about the rebirth of the Friendly Visitor Program and is hoping to restart the program in the 
spring. 
 
Ms. Lee stated she and Ms. Amaral-Lema had a wonderful time visiting Cranston with the RSVP seniors.  Ms. 
Lee said they rode in their COA van and toured Garden City and Chapel View which are popular shopping 
locations.  She stated she and Ms. Amaral-Lema met Mayor Fung and spoke about the positive impact the 
handmade dolls have made of many lives, both seniors and children.  
 
Motion to approve the Director’s report was made Mr. Ociesa and seconded Ms. Alejandro-Berube.  It 
was unanimously approved. 
 
 
Director of Community Services Report- Ms. Wallquist 
 
Mr. Duarte read over Ms. Wallquist report which included that the Clear Path program continues to shovel out 
60 homes.  Also, Ms. Wallquist stated the Hazelwood Zumba numbers continue to grow and the seniors enjoy 
the monthly hot Monday catered lunch.   
 
A motion to approve the Director of Community Services report was made by Mr. Ociesa and seconded 
by Ms. Mello.  It was unanimously approved.   
 
Correspondence 
 
Mr. Duarte read a letter Ms. Lee received from a woman who was very thrilled about the Hillman Street Senior 
Support Center.  This woman thanked Mayor Mitchell and Mr. Duarte for everything they do for seniors in the 
city of New Bedford, and is excited about the new programs that the Support Center will offer. Mr. Duarte 
concluded by stating that is the board’s mission is to help and find services to best aide seniors in the 
community.   
 
 
Motion to adjourn this meeting was made by Ms. Stott and seconded by Ms. Sullivan.  It was 
unanimously approved. 
 
 
 
 


	Mr. Duarte asked the board members to read over the minutes to see if there were any questions.  Mr. Duarte asked Ms. Lee how did the Department of Community Services and Council on Aging deal with the excess of snow removal needs.  Ms. Lee stated she...

